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FILED
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT L/
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA I PS5
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION 705 MV -1 :
LEp LR TIRTRICT COURT,
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OWNER-OPERATOR INDEPENDENT DRIVERS
ASSOCIATION, INC. and G. L. BREWER;
GERALD E. EIDAM, JR.; CAREY R. LAUE;
JAMES E. MICHAEL; ROBERT PENMAN AND
JAMES E. SCHMIDT and on behalf of all others -
similarly situated, 3 J2-CV-1008 -T--25 HI kY
Case No.

Plaintiffs, Complaint—Class Action

V. Demand for Jury Trial
LANDSTAR SYSTEM INC.; LANDSTAR EXPRESS
AMERICA, INC.: LANDSTAR GEMINI, INC.;
LANDSTAR INWAY, INC.; LANDSTAR LIGON, INC;
LANDSTAR LOGISTICS, INC.; and

LANDSTAR RANGER, INC,

Defendants.

A N A A R R S S S S S R T T N N

PLAINTIFFS’ CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES

AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
The Owner-Operator Independent Drivers Association, Inc. (“OOIDA”), G. L. Brewer,
Gerald E. Eidam, Jr., Carey R. Laue, James E. Michael, Robert Penman and James E. Schmidt
(collectively “Plaintiffs,” or for all but OOIDA, “Contracting Plaintiffs”), bring this action
seeking declaratory, injunctive and monetary relief on behalf of themselves and all others
similarly situated against Defendant Landstar System Inc., and its wholly owned operating

companies, Landstar Express America, Inc.; Landstar Gemini, Inc.; Landstar Inway, Inc.;
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Landstar Ligon, Inc.; Landstar Logistics, Inc.; and Landstar Ranger, Inc. (the “operating
companies”) (collectively “Landstar” or “Defendant”), and allege as follows:
NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. The Landstar operating companies are regulated motor carriers that provide
transportation of property in interstate commerce under authority issued by the U.S. Department
of Transportation (“DOT”). The Landstar operating companies transport property in equipment
leased from independent truckers (known as “owner-operators”) including the Contracting
Plaintiffs G. L. Brewer, Gerald E. Eidam, Jr., Carey R. Laue, James E. Michael, Robert Penman
and James E. Schmidt and others similarly situated. Under federal law and regulations,
“authorized motor carriers” such as the Landstar operating companies may perform authorized
transportation in equipment that they do not own only if the equipment is covered by a written
lease meeting the requirements set forth in 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (Part 376). See 49 C.F.R.
§ 376.11(a). Authorized motor carriers are required by regulation to follow the required lease
provisions. 49 C.F.R. § 376.12.

2. Landstar and its operating companies have engaged in a pattern and practice of
conduct violating their obligations under Part 376 to Contracting Plaintiffs and others similarly
situated.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This action arises under 49 U.S.C. §§ 14102 and 14704 et seq., and 49 C.F.R. Part
376 et seq., for violation of the statutes and regulations governing the terms and conditions
pursuant to which truck owner-operators lease equipment to authorized motor carriers for the

transport of property.
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4. Jurisdiction of this matter is granted to this court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (federal
question jurisdiction), and 1337 (proceedings arising under an act of Congress regulating
commerce). The causes of action alleged here arise under the laws of the United States
regulating commerce and the activities of motor carriers engaged in the transportation of
property in interstate commerce, including 49 U.S.C. §§ 13501, 14102 and 14704(a)(1) and (2),
and 49 C.F.R. § 376 et seq. Violations of the federal regulations are privately actionable under
49 U.S.C. § 14704(a)(1) and (2).

5. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) in that Landstar
maintains a place of business in this district and because a substantial part of the events giving
rise to the claims raised herein occurred in this district or state.

6. Some of the Landstar leases contain arbitration clauses that purport to require that
disputes arising out of or related to the lease be arbitrated under the laws of either Florida or
Illinois depending on where the operating company is located. These arbitration clauses are
unenforceable, and this action is properly before this Court.

PARTIES TO THE ACTION

7. Plaintiff Owner-Operator Independent Drivers Association, Inc. (“OOIDA”) is a
business association of persons and entities who own and operate motor vehicles, commonly
known as “owner-operators.” Owner-operators are small business truckers who own and operate
a truck tractor (of a tractor-trailer combination). They lease their tractor and driving services,
and often their own trailer, to motor carriers (such as Defendant), agreeing to move items in
interstate commerce for the motor carrier in exchange for specified compensation. OOIDA is a
not-for-profit corporation incorporated in the State of Missouri, with its headquarters located at

1 N.W. OOIDA Dirive, P.O. Box 1000, Grain Valley, Missouri 64029. OOIDA was founded in
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1973 and now has over 86,000 members residing in all fifty (50) states and in Canada. OOIDA
brings this action in a representative capacity and seeks declaratory and injunctive relief on
behalf of all owner-operators including those who are its members.

8. Contracting Plaintiff G. L. Brewer, a citizen of the State of California, is an
owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to Landstar Inway, Inc.
within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

9. Contracting Plaintiff Gerald E. Eidam Jr., a citizen of the State of Colorado, is an
owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to Landstar Ligon, Inc.,
within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

10.  Contracting Plaintiff Carey R. Laue, a citizen of the State of Illinois, is an
owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to Landstar Inway, Inc.,
within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

11. Contracting Plaintiff James E. Michael, a citizen of the State of West Virginia, is
an owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to Landstar Ligon,
Inc., within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

12. Contracting Plaintiff Robert Penman, a citizen of the State of West Virginia, is an
owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to Landstar Ranger, Inc.,
within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

13.  Contracting Plaintiff James E. Schmidt, a citizen of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky, is an owner-operator who has leased motor vehicle equipment, with a driver, to
Landstar Inway, Inc., within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 13907.

14.  Contracting Plaintiffs G. L. Brewer , Gerald E. Eidam, Jr., Carey R. Laue, James

E. Michael, Robert Penman and James E. Schmidt, are members of OOIDA.
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15.  Contracting Plaintiffs and other similarly situated owner-operators are “owners”
within the meaning of 49 C.F.R. § 376.2(d), and “lessors” within the meaning of 49 C.F.R.
§ 376.2(f).

16.  Each lease agreement entered between Contracting Plaintiffs and other similarly
situated owner-operators, and Landstar constitutes a "lease" within the meaning of 49 C.F.R.
§ 376.2(e).

17.  The vehicles Contracting Plaintiffs, and other similarly situated owner-operators,
provided to Landstar for use are “equipment” within the meaning of 49 C.F.R. § 376.2(b).

18.  On information and belief, the leasing agreements between Contracting Plaintiffs
and Landstar Inway, Inc. Landstar Ligon, Inc. and Landstar Ranger, Inc. are substantively
identical to the leasing agreements entered into between all Landstar operating companies and
other similarly situated owner-operators.

19.  Landstar System, Inc. is a Delaware corporation doing business in Florida.
Landstar’s operating companies are regulated motor carriers, primarily engaged in the enterprise
of providing transportation services to the shipping public under authority granted by DOT and
formerly the ICC. During all time material to this case, Landstar’s operating companies are, and
have been, an “authorized carriers” within the meaning of 49 C.F.R. § 376.2(a).

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

20.  This action is brought by Plaintiffs as a national class action, on their own behalf
and on behalf of all others similarly situated.

21. Class Description. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class (hereinafter “Class™)

consisting of all owner-operators in the United States who, after November 1, 1998, and through
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the pendency of this proceeding, had or have leases with Landstar’s operating companies that are
subject to federal regulations contained in Part 376, Code of Federal Regulations.

22.  Impracticability of Joinder. There are thousands of individual owner-operators
who are members of this Class. These individual owner-operators are residents of various states
and travel continuously, and are, therefore widely dispersed geographically. Thus, joinder of all
potential Class Members would be impracticable.

23. Commonality. Landstar has acted toward these Class Members in a way that
affects all members of the Class similarly and, accordingly, questions of fact and law are
common to the Class, as are questions of the liability of Landstar, or the appropriate nature of
injunctive relief.

24.  Typicality. The claims of the Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of the potential
Class as a whole.

25. Fair_and Adequate Representation. Plaintiffs are capable of fairly and
adequately protecting the interests of the Class. Additionally, OOIDA has previously
participated as class representative on behalf of owner-operators in several cases, and counsel for
Plaintiffs (The Cullen Law Firm, PLLC) has been appointed Class Counsel in similar class
actions throughout the country.

26.  Class Certification Appropriate Under Rule 23(b)(2). Defendant has acted
and/or failed to act on grounds generally applicable to the potential class as a whole, as described
further herein. Thus, injunctive and declaratory relief is appropriate with respect to the potential
class as a whole, making class certification appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2).

27.  Class Certification Appropriate Under Rule 23(b)(3). The questions of law

enumerated in the counts below are common to all potential class members, as described in
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paragraph 21 supra, and predominate over any questions affecting only individual members
which are essentially limited to the amounts due each member. Therefore, a class action is
superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the claims herein.

28.  Additional Factors Favoring Class Certification. Other factors favoring the
certification of this suit as a class action include:

(a) the amounts in controversy for individual owner-operators are relatively
small, so that individual members of the Class would not find it cost-effective to bring
individual claims;

(b) requiring individuals to prosecute separate actions would substantially impair
or impede the individual members’ ability to protect their interests;

(c) on information and belief, there is no litigation already commenced by Class
Members concerning the causes of action raised in this Complaint;

(d) it is desirable to concentrate the individual members’ claims in one forum
because, given the amount in controversy, to require these claims to be brought in
separate forums would effectively prevent individuals from bringing claims to recover
their funds;

(e) no substantial difficulties are likely to be encountered in managing this class
action; and

(f) Plaintiffs are represented by The Cullen Law Firm, PLLC, which has the
experience of representing their clients in numerous class actions involving

owner-operators and other small business truckers nationwide.
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FEDERAL REGULATORY SETTING

29.  Under federal law, an authorized motor carrier may perform authorized
transportation in equipment it does not own only under a written lease granting use of the
equipment and meeting the requirements contained in 49 C.F.R. §376.12. 49 CFR. §
376.11(a); see also 49 U.S.C. § 14102. A person injured on account of an authorized carrier’s
violation of or failure to comply with the federal leasing regulations may bring an action seeking
injunctive relief and damages against such authorized carrier pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 14704(a)(1)
and (2), as well as attorneys’ fees and costs as authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 14704(e).

30. The federal leasing regulations provide that the lease contain specific provisions
and that the regulated motor carrier adhere to those terms. 49 C.F.R. §§ 376.11 and 376.12. The
Contracting Plaintiffs entered into federally-regulated lease agreements (the "Lease
Agreements") with Defendant. A genuine copy of the Lease Agreement entered between
Landstar Inway and Plaintiff G. L. Brewer is attached as Exhibit "A.” On information and
belief, the clauses in this Lease Agreement on which the causes of action in this complaint are
based, are identical in all material respects to Lease Agreements entered into by the various
defendants with the individuals in the potential class.

31. 49 C.FR. § 376.12(h) provides that the lease “clearly specify all items that may
be initially paid for by the authorized carrier, but ultimately deducted from the lessor’s
compensation . . . together with a recitation as to how the amount of each item is to be
computed.” The lease also must recite that the lessor is to be afforded copies of those documents

which are necessary to determine the validity of the charge.
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COUNT1
Unlawful Provision of Transportation Services by Landstar

32.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 31.

33.  Under federal law, an “authorized carrier may perform authorized transportation
in equipment it does not own only under the following conditions: . . . [t]here shall be a written
lease granting the use of the equipment and meeting the requirements contained in § 376.12.” 49
CF.R. § 376.11(a). Defendant Landstar is engaged in the unlawful provision of transportation
services in equipment it does not own because the leases governing its use of such equipment fail
to conform to 49 C.F.R. Part 376.

a. Defendant’s Lease Agreements with Plaintiffs do not contain certain
provisions required by 49 C.F.R. § 376.12. By way of illustration and not limitation:
1. Defendant Landstar’s Lease Agreements do not specify that, upon
a driver’s request, it will provide the driver with a copy of each
insurance policy as required by C.F.R. § 376.12 (j)(2).
2. Defendant Landstar’s Lease Agreements do not properly specify
the compensation given to owner-operators who haul Department
of Defense shipments as required by 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(d).
b. Defendant Landstar’s Lease Agreements contain provisions that conflict
with 49 C.F.R. § 376.12. By way of illustration and not limitation,
1. Defendant Landstar’s Lease Agreements provide that it can deduct
from the driver’s compensation any amount the driver owes it,
which provision conflicts with its obligation to specify all

chargebacks in advance as required by 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (h);
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2. Defendant’s leases do not disclose the amount deducted from the
owner-operator’s compensation that exceeds the actual cost of the
items initially paid for by the Defendant. The leases do not contain
recitations as to how these deductions from compensation are
calculated all in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (h);

3. Defendant Landstar’s Lease Agreements provide that all
indebtedness may be deducted from a driver’s escrow, which
provision conflicts with its obligation to specify with particularity
the items for which the escrow can be used as required by 49
C.F.R. § 376.12 (k);

34.  As a direct and proximate result of this violation of federal law, the rights of
Plaintiffs have been violated and Plaintiffs have suffered financial injury.

COUNTII
Unlawful Charge-backs to Compensation for Fuel Costs
And Comdata Fees
(in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (h))

35.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 31
above.

36. Comdata, Inc is a Tennessee corporation that provides certain electronic credit
and banking facilities to motor carriers. Comdata, Inc. issues cards to motor carriers for use by
their drivers that are used to identify drivers eligible to enter transactions against the motor
carrier’s credit facility. Drivers use the Comdata cards to obtain electronic transfer of funds from
the motor carrier and to acquire fuel and other items and services while on the road. Comdata

imposes transaction charges on motor carriers for the use of its cards.

10



Case 3:02-cv-01005-HLA-MCR Document 1 Filed 11/01/02 Page 11 of 35 PagelD 11

37. Defendant has entered into an arrangement with Comdata, Inc., which, among
other things, is intended to facilitate the acquisition of fuel by Contracting Plaintiffs and other
owner-operators from various truck stops throughout the nation. Pursuant to Defendant’s
arrangement with Comdata, Inc., Contracting Plaintiffs and other owner-operators procure fuel
at various truck stops using credits made available to them on a Comdata Card issued to them by
Landstar (Landstar Fuel Card). Comdata, Inc. notifies Defendant of fuel acquired by Contracting
Plaintiffs and other owner-operators using the Landstar Fuel Card.

38.  Defendant pays for the fuel acquired by the Contracting Plaintiffs and other
owner-operators by making payments either to Comdata, Inc. or directly to the truck stop chain
that dispensed the fuel to owner-operators. Defendant then charges back an amount for such fuel
against the compensation due Contracting Plaintiffs and other owner operators who use the
Landstar Fuel Card.

39.  Through negotiations with either the truckstop or Comdata, Landstar obtains
discounts or rebates from the price shown on the pump at the time fuel is dispensed to an owner-
operator. Landstar passes on only a portion of these discounts or rebates to owner-operators
under lease to its operating companies. The amount of discount or rebate passed on to owner-
operators is set at preestablished rates shown in a document entitled “Rapid Rebate - Program
Directory” published quarterly by Landstar and distributed to all owner-operators under lease to
the Landstar operating companies. The Contracting Plaintiffs’ Landstar Fuel Card is charged the
non-discounted price of the fuel. The discount or rebate established for the Rapid Rebate-
Program is subsequently passed on to the Contracting Plaintiffs and other owner-operators

through a credit to their Landstar Fuel Card balance or to their weekly settlement statements.

11
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40. The discounts or rebates negotiated by Defendant with Comdata or with
individual truck stops directly are generally greater than the discounts or rebates set out in the
Rapid Rebate - Program Directory. The sums charged back by Defendant to the Contracting
Plaintiffs and other owner-operators for such fuel after the deduction of the discount or rebate
identified in the Rapid Rebate - Program Directory are substantially greater than the amounts
actually paid by the Defendant to Comdata or to individual truck stops for such fuel providing
Defendant with a substantial undisclosed profit on the transaction.

41.  Comdata charges Landstar a fee each time Contracting Plaintiffs and other owner-
operators use its services. On information and belief, Comdata’s fee for fuel purchases does not
exceed $0.81 per transaction. Comdata’s fee for transferring cash to a Contracting Plaintiff and
other owner-operators does not exceed $0.75 per transaction. On information and belief,
Landstar imposes a charge-back against the compensation of the Contracting Plaintiffs and other
owner-operators of $1.75 per transaction.

42.  On information and belief, Landstar’s Comdata program is identical in all
material respects for all of its operating companies. On information and belief, all owner-
operators who have leases with any of the Landstar operating companies participate in
Landstar’s Comdata program.

43.  The lease does not disclose the amount by which the charge-backs by Defendant
against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for fuel exceed the amount initially paid by
Defendant for such fuel in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant failed to afford
Plaintiffs copies of those documents which are necessary to determine the validity of the charge-
backs by Defendant against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for fuel in excess of amounts

initially paid by Defendant for such fuel in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant

12
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illegally profited for charge-backs related to the purchase of fuel in violation of 49 C.F.R.
§ 376.12(h).

44.  The lease does not disclose the amount by which the charge-backs by Defendant
against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for Comdata fees exceed the amount initially paid
by Defendant for such fees in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant failed to afford
Plaintiffs copies of those documents which are necessary to determine the validity of the charge-
backs by Defendant against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for Comdata fees in excess of
amounts initially paid by Defendant for such fees, in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h).
Defendant illegally profited from charge-backs related to use of Comdata cards.

45. As a direct and proximate result of Landstar’s violations of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h)
owner-operators are deprived of sums rightfully belonging to them and have incurred substantial
monetary damages.

COUNT III
Unlawful Reductions or Charge-Backs to Compensation for Third-Party
Payor Costs Associated With Department of Defense Shipments
(in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (d) and (h))

46. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 31
above.

47.  The Department of Defense (“DOD”) requires all motor carriers hauling DOD
shipments to obtain the payment for their services through U.S. Bank’s Power Track payment
system. U.S. Bank charges a fee according to a sliding scale based on the cost of transporting
shipments ranging from two percent for shipments costing under $600.00 to one percent for
shipments costing over $2000.00. Landstar operating companies obtain payment for carrying

DOD shipments through this payment system.

13
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48.  Owner-operators working for Landstar operating companies are entitled to a
percentage of the “adjusted gross revenue,” which is based on revenue shown on the rated freight
bill.

49.  Landstar operating companies charge back the U.S. Bank third-party payor cost to
owner-operators carrying DOD freight by deducting two percent from the revenue shown on the
rated freight bill for all DOD shipments before calculating the owner-operators’ share of the
revenue. Landstar does not disclose this deduction on the owner-operators’ settlement sheets.

50.  On information and belief, Landstar’s third-party payor system is identical in all
material respects for all of its operating companies. On information and belief, Landstar reduces
the compensation for all Landstar owner-operators who haul DOD shipments by deducting two
percent from the revenue derived from the shipment even though in many cases the actual charge
to Landstar is less than two percent.

51. The Defendant’s lease, in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(d), does not specify that
owner-operator compensation will be reduced by first reducing the adjusted gross revenue
derived from DOD shipments.

52. The lease does not specify the charge-backs by Defendant against Contracting
Plaintiffs’ compensation for third-party payor costs associated with DOD shipments in violation
of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant failed to afford Plaintiffs copies of those documents which
are necessary to determine the validity of the charge-backs by Defendant against Contracting
Plaintiffs’ compensation for third-party payor costs associated with DOD shipments initially paid
by Defendant in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant illegally profited from charge-
backs related to third-party payor costs associated with DOD shipments in violation of 49 C.F.R.

§ 376.12(h).

14
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53. As a direct and proximate result of Landstar’s violations of 49 C.F.R. §376.12(d)
and (h), owner-operators are deprived of sums rightfully belonging to them and have incurred
substantial monetary damages.

COUNT 1V

Unlawful Charge-Backs to Compensation for Base Plates and Permits
(in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 (h))

54.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 31
above.

55.  Motor carriers operating commercial motor vehicles traveling in interstate
commerce must obtain authority to travel in each state in which they operate. The operator must
obtain an annual *“base” plate in a state in which it does business. When applying for a base
plate, the operator declares the states in which it expects to travel and the estimated miles that it
expects to travel in each of those states. The operator pays a fee to the base state that covers the
taxes due in each of those states. The base state shares the revenue with the other individual
states based on the ratio of the declared estimated miles for a state to the total estimated miles for
all states.

56.  On information and belief, Defendant Landstar uses Illinois as its base state for all
of its operating companies. Prior to April 1, 2001, Landstar charged $1500 for all base plates
sold to owner-operators working for the Landstar operating companies. After that date, Landstar
began charging $1600 for all base plates. On information and belief, Landstar’s cost for base
plates is, and has been, less than $1500 for each commercial motor vehicle it licenses in Illinois.

57. Prior to April 1, 2001, Landstar charged $250 to owner-operators for transferring
or “reselling” their base plates when they left Landstar. The State of Illinois charges $15 for
transferring a base plate.

15
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58. In addition to the base plate, the operator of a commercial motor vehicle is
required to obtain special permits if the vehicle carries certain regulated shipments such as
hazardous materials and alcohol or operates in states that have additional permit requirements
such as New York and New Mexico.

59.  Prior to January 1, 2001, Landstar charged $325 for an “annual permit package”
that it provides to owner-operators to cover these special permits. After that date Landstar began
charging $340 for this package. Landstar charges this fee to all owner-operators working for the
Landstar operating companies whether or not the owner-operator requires these special permits.
On information and belief, the cost of the individual permits total less than the amount charged
by Landstar.

60.  On information and belief, Landstar’s base plate and permit program is identical
in all material respects for all of its operating companies. On information and belief, the
majority of owner-operators who have leases with any of the Landstar operating companies
obtain their base plates and permits through Landstar.

61.  The lease does not disclose the amount by which the charge-backs by Defendant
against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for base plates and permits exceed the amount
initially paid by Defendant for such fees in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant failed
to afford Plaintiffs copies of those documents which are necessary to determine the validity of
the charge-backs by Defendant against Contracting Plaintiffs’ compensation for base plates and
permits paid by Defendant in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h). Defendant illegally profited

from charge-backs related to base plate and permit costs in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(h).

16
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62. As a direct and proximate result of Landstar’s violations of 49 C.F.R. §376.12(h)
owner-operators are deprived of sums rightfully belonging to them and have incurred substantial

monetary damages.

PRAYERS FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs,; OWNER-OPERATOR INDEPENDENT DRIVERS
ASSOCIATION, INC., G. L. BREWER, GERALD E. EIDAM, JR., CAREY R. LAUE, JAMES
E. MICHAEL, ROBERT PENMAN and JAMES E. SCHMIDT, individually and on behalf of all
others similarly situated, respectfully request that this Court:

1. Enter a declaratory judgment that the leases Defendant entered into with
Contracting Plaintiffs violate 49 C.F.R.§ 376.12 by failing to include certain required provisions
and included others that conflict with that regulatory provision;

2. Enter a declaratory judgment that Defendant has violated 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(d)
and (h) by imposing excessive charge-backs on Contracting Plaintiffs for fuel transactions and
Comdata fees, unauthorized reductions in compensation or excessive charge-backs for third-
party payor costs for DOD shipments, and excessive charge-back costs associated with base
plates and permits;

3. Enter an Order that Defendant provide to Contracting Plaintiffs and Class
Members an accounting of all transactions involving deductions from income or debits and
credits to income for: (1) fuel transactions and Comdata fees, (2) third-party payor costs for
DOD shipments, and (3) base plates and permits. Enter an Order that further requires Defendant
to recite how each charge against income was calculated while providing all documentation
necessary to confirm the validity of the same transactions pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 376.12(d), (h)
and (j);

17
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4. Enjoin Defendant from violating Part 376 regulations;

S. Certify a class comprised of lessors of motor vehicle equipment who, after
November 1, 1998 and through the pendency of this proceeding are or have been parties to a
Lease agreement with Defendant within the meaning of Part 376, Code of Federal Regulations.

6. Enjoin Defendant from any acts of retaliation, harassment, or intimidation against
Contracting Plaintiffs and Class Members and others who may assist and/or participate in this
action;

7. Enter judgment against Defendant in favor of Contracting Plaintiffs and
individual class members for restitution and disgorgement of all charge-backs and other sums
unlawfully deducted from compensation in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 376.12 and for damages, all

pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 14704(a)(2), and including pre- and post-judgment interest, as allowed

by law;

8. Create a common fund made up of all damages owed by Defendant to individual
Class Members;

9. Award reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses incurred in the prosecution of this

action to be paid out of the common fund;
10.  Award reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 14704(e);
and

11.  Award such other relief as this Court may deem to be just and proper.

18
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiffs demand a trial

by jury on all issues triable as of right by a jury.

Respectfully submitted,
Paul D. Cullen, Sr. SMITH Y & BUSEY
Joseph A. Black
Daniel R. Unumb
THE CULLEN LAW FIRM, PLLC By
1101 30™ Street, N.W., Suite 300 Michael R. Freed
Washington, D.C. 20007-3770
(202) 944-8600 (Telephone) Florida Bar Number: 0069205
(202) 944-8611 (Telecopier) 1800 First Union National Bank Tower
225 Water Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
(904) 359-7700
Attorneys for Plaintiffs (904) 359-7708 facsimile
00399430.DOC
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—_— INWAY

LANDSTAR LNXWAY, TC.
P.0. Box 7013 ’
Roekfard, l!ﬁnah' 61128

STATEMENT OF LEASE & RECEIPT FOR EQUIPMENT

L. LANDSTAR INWAY. INC. "CARRIER") (ICC Identification ¥MC-161364) and
. gé—_‘zﬁ:"‘/"f L

. m!nn.mn'r CONTRACTORS NAME)

620 Lortsrr Lo

' GNDEFENORNT COMTRACTOR'S ADDRIZS)
onome , CLa = 35476

.STATE) aw coon

- D2 - (50—
(NDEIENDENT m«m mum
("INDEPENDENT CON‘I’RACI‘OR’) we parties © & writen MOTOR VEHICLE AGREEMENT BETWEEN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND
CARRIFR (the “Agmr’)wﬂ«a&y INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR has lessed to CARRIER the equipment specified in Saction IV below (the
'Equmm'). owned by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, and INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is providing CARRIER as operstor or operators of
the Eqmpmbtm pmpouofbadm'.

I mmwormwmomhmnmmeucmasmomu.wmm»smwm ‘mosecondcnpyormu
. Statement of Lessc and Receipt S0 Cquiposent i3 the Stasement of Lease 1© be caried on the Equipment » icyuited by 49 CP.R. § 1037.11(cx2).
CARRIER verifies that the Equipment is being opersied by CARRIER pursuant 10 the terms of the Agreement  There are no restrictions in the
‘Amm-hmmdﬂsdumkm

m. mmncmou OF zou:mm
" TRACTOR VY e New Leass or____ Trade of Equip. TRAILER _____I_/New Lense or ____ Trade of Equip.
Y Nember 537&/3
{TD BE ASSIGNED RY CARRIER) (TO BR-ASSIGNED 8Y CARRER)
Mg ermiide~ #h Make Doona
Tractor Type: COE__-_ ot CONV . Toiter Type _5/2 Model Year 77
Model Yeur _F5 _ empry Weign /9360 set Numbee /09854829 V/2EB605
srini Number . XG BD O IXLIREADIHp  Lengn _ €8 Empty Weight /2 262
V. RECKIPT OF EQUIPMINT: CAmm-:ll hmby mhknowledgea ipt of the Equipment described above, which is the Equipnent desusibed i Un
Aqr:emcnt. '
/j 0 "Qg By
(ronmwunmtsw‘moum YEE UPON APPROVAL BY THE GENERAL OFFICE}
Revised mﬁs

EXHIBIT A 121-08
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MOTOR VEHICLE AND HAULAGE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND LANDSTAR INWAY, INC.
{*Agreement”)

1 BQUIPMENT: INTEPENDENT CONTRACTOR represents and warszants to CARRIER that it holds full
legal title to or is otherwise authorized to concract the equipment idenctified in Saction IV of the
Statement of Lease and Recelpt for Equlpment (the “Equipwment”), and further warrants ard reprssents
that the Equipment is in gocd, safe and efficient operating coadition as xequired by govermment
authorities and shall ta so main=ained at INDEFPENDENT CCNTRACTOR's expense throughout the duration
of this Agreement. The choice of lccation and persons Lo perioxm any necessary rezalrs or
maintenance i3 exclusively vestsd with INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. ALL PCWER EGQUIPMENT WHICH IS THB
SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT IS TO B2 OPERATED BY FULLY QUALIPIED AND LICENSED OPSRATORS TO 3B PROVIDED
BY INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR AT ITS TYPENSE.

(a) Recedipt ¢ m . Upen INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR making avalilable to CARRIER the
BQuipment, CARARIEZR shall furnish to INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR the Statement of Lease
and Receipt for Tquipment, which shall ccastitute the receipt requirad by 49 C.7.R.
§ 376.11(b). Upcn termination of the Agresment, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR skall
execute the sams or 3imilar Scatement of Lease and Receipt for Equipment as the
wricten receipt for the xetwurn of the Equipment by CARRIER to INDEPSNDENT
CONTRACTOR. In tha svent that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR fails to submit the Statement
of Lease and Receipt for Bquipment upen texmination of this Agreement, INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR authorizes CARRIBR to aenter the time and date in Section VI of the
Statament of Lease and Receipt for Bguipment £o evidence the return of the Equipment
to INDEZPRMDENT CCNTRACTOR by CARRIER. If requirad by applicable federal, provincial
or state .aw, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shail name CARRIER oa either the vehicle or
plate portion of the vehicle pezmit, or include CARRIER on a statement of a leade
between INDEPENUENT COMTRACTOR and a thir2 parzy. Hovever, undsr no circumstances
shall CARRIBR ke, oY ba deemed to be, iiable for any lease payments wiatscever dus
or owed from INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR to any third party. In the event that CARRIER
i3 found to be liablis fcr asuch lesase payments, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall fully
indemnify CARRIEZR for any and all costs or damages imposed.

(b W INDBPENDENT JONTRACTCR agrees to operats the Equipment in a
sate and prudent mapner at all times in accozdance with the laws of the various
jurisdictions 1n which it is operated and pursuant to the operating authorities of
the CARRIER, and in accordancs with all zules zelating to traff:c safsty, righway

protection and road rejuirements.

{c} Ingpeciion and Maintenance of Egquigment. INCEPENDBNT CONTRAGCTOR agrees Yo aainzain
the Bguipment, at its sole expense, in accordance with the safety and squipment
standardy specified in all applicable federal, provincial and state laws under which
tha Bquipment 13 licansed to cperate. INDEPBMNDENT COUNTRACTOR shall, at its expense,
make che Cquipment available for inspsction by CARRIZR at a3 plase designaced by
CARRIER. Thereafter, as xequired by applicable federal law, INDEPENDBNT CONTRACTOR
shall make the Equipment availabla for inspection by CARRIBR at least onca every 120
days. Providing that such inspection is done every 120 days and at a place
designated by CARRIER, then CARRIER will pay for the exgense of inspaction. 1f the
Equipment is not inspectad every 120 days, the Equipment will be placed cut-of-
sexvice oy CARRIER until the required inspection 13 completed, in which case the
inspection shall be Al INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR's 3ole expense. If any inspection
reveals that the Zquipment dces not comply with applicadhle standards cf Zsderal,
previncial or atate law, the Zquipment must be made to comply with such reguirements
by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, at Lts expense, within a reasorable time as ceterminad by
CARRIER . INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall, &t {ts sole expense. hkeep reccrds of
inspection, repair, and maintenance of the EQuipment in accordance with the PFederal
Motor Caryier Safsty Regulations (4% C.P.R. Part 319¢) and, if cperated in Canada,
applicable provincial requlations, and shall maintain all such records for the
durstion of this Agreement and for aix (5) months Chereafter. INDEPENTUENT
CONTRACTOR 3hall, as directed by CARRIER, forward tc CARRIBR all maintenance reccrds
covering the Equipment raquired by applicakle DOT or Canadian federal or provincial
regulations.

{d) Mwmmﬁjﬂﬁm& If required by appiicable faderal, provincial ox
state law, INDBEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall cause the name, style, mark or lego of
CARRIBR to be affixed to the EqQuipment on tha direction and in tha manner prescribed
by CARRIBR. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost of affixing
such name, style, marx or loge and for the removal of same at the termination of

this Agreement.
M DURATION OF AGRBEMENT: Thas Agrscoent shall be effective as of the date sntered hereinbelow

and shall rsmain ia effect ungil terminated in accordarce with the provisiona of this Agreament.
The breach by eithar party of any cof the pruvisions of this Agreement shall immediately terminare
all provisions of this Agreement, except those provisicns ralating to indemnificaticn of CARRIER by
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR as contalned :n thia Agxeemenc, whizh indeanification provisions shall be
effective at all times. Eircher party, by givaing the orher party twenty-four (24) hours wriltten

netice, may terminate this Agreemen: at any time CAFRIER may aiso tarminate the Agreaement
b CONTRACT 01/ 6/98
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iomediately by oral notice followed by written notice tc INDEPENDBHT CCNTRACTOR. Acceptance of
tender of load after the effective date of this Agreemen: shall indicate uaderstanding and
acceptance by INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR shall ensure tha: any worker employed or utiitzed by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR to provide
servicas undar this Agreement ccmplies with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Alithough
this Agraement does nNOt contain a staced date of termination, the parziss agree that they are not
creating a permanent or indefinite relationship.

3. BXCLUSIVE POSSEISION AND RESPONIIBILITY: The Tquipment shall be for CARRIER'S excluaive
Posasesion, control and use for the duration of this Agreemenz. This provision is set forth solely
to conform wich Pedsral Highway Administration regulacions and shall not be used foxr any othexr
purposes, including any attemps to clamsify INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its workers as emplcyees of
CARRIBR. DNothing 10 the provisions required by 4% C.P.R. § 376.12(c) (1) is incended as evidence
that the INDERENDENT CONTRACTCR or any worker provided by INDEPENCENT CONTRACTOR is an employes of
CAFRIER. Curing the tezm of this Agreement, CARRIER shall have the exclusive right to subcontract
the Bquipment to other autherized motor carciers. INDEPENDSNT CONTRACTOR may only subcontract oy
trip lease the Equipment upon prior written authorization recsived from CARRIER as set fcrech in
Paragraph 19. CARRIZR has no right to and will net control the manner nor prsscribe the method of
doing that portion of the operation which is countracted £or in this Agreement by INUBPENDENT
CONTRACTOR., except such control 4s can reascnably be construed to be required by all applicable laws
and regulations. INDSPENDENT CONTRACTOR reserves the right to accept or rejmet any freight tendered
tor transportation by CARRIER,

4. COMPENSATION: Tt i» expressly undermtcod and agreed that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR's
compensation shall be as aet forih in Aggegdirs A and such compensation shall constituce the toal
companantion for svervthing furnished, provided, or done by INDBPENDBNT CONTRACTOR {n comnsetion
with this Agreemens, including the services of its drivers. All mileage computaticns shall be based

on CARRIBR's mileage guids.

{a) Settlemants. CARRIRR shall setcle with INDEPENCENT CONTRACTIOR with respec- to
services provided under this Agresment within fiftsen (15) calendar days after
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR'S submission, in proper foxm, of those 3Jocumencs necassary
for CARRIER to gecure payment fxom CARRIER's customers, including the bill of
lading, signed delivery receipt or othar proof of delivery acceptabie tc CARRIER,
and properly completed driver 1099 as raquired by applicable federal, pzovincial cr
scate law, and, in the case of C.0.D., shipments, delivery of the certified check or
noney ordex due to CARRIER. CARRIBR will provide INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR, &% oF
befsre the Zims of setzlement, a copy of the applicable rated frmight 2ill, bills of
iading (in the ¢ase of Canadian originating shigmants) ary other applicable document
from which ratea or charges ars computad, or a computer-generated document
containing the same information. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR may view during CARRIER'S
1ormal business hours a copy of any such applicable freighc bill or other document.
CARRISR may, at its discration, delecs the names ¢f ghippers and cons:gness shown
on any such underlying document to be inspected by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR. CUpcen
sermination of chis Agreement, CARRIER will withhold the final settlement dus to
INDEPENTEINT CONTRACTOR, Lf any, under this Agreement until INDEPIVDENT CONTRACTOR
roturnyd %o CARRIER the identification devices INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is vequired o
return to CARAIRR pursuant to Paragraph § of chis Agreement. In the event that the
identitication devices have been lost =r stclern, a lecter certifying their xsmoval
will gatisfy this requirement for purposes of 1issuing final settlement ¢o
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

{b) Pre-Trip Ssttlement. Where INDEPBNDENT CONTRACTOR has secured a pra-trip settlement
of any kind from CARRIER, cr if there shall ke any other amounts due CARRIER frecm
INDTPENDENT CONTRACTOR Or its workers pursuant to this Agreement, including tut nst
limited o, operational expensas sst forth in Paragraph 7, carg> claims, preperty
damage, towing charges, requested clothing itens, vehicls repairs, tires, EQuipment
cleaning sxpenses, ané deductions for any insurance related ¢csts, CARRIER shall
be authorizad to deduct the amount of such pre-trip settlement or othar smouat due
CAPRIER from any settlement, escrow fund, or any mories due cr becoming Zus ko
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR from CARRIER undex this Agreement, and Lf sich monies are
ingufticient to cover the total amount dus CARRIER, then INCEPBNTENT CONTRACTOR will
on demand pay tc CAFRIER alli sums remaining due to CARRIBR, togethsr with intersst
at the waximum lagal rate and sny expensge, including rsagonabie attorney fees,
incurred by CARRISR ir recovering such amounts frecm INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.
INCEPENDENT CONTRACTOR and its workers shall not charge any purchase Lo CARRIER and,
in the event INDEPENDSNT CONTRACTOR or ics wecrkers do charge any puzchase to
CARRIER, such sums paid by CARRIER ghall be ctysated as a Pre-Trip Settlemen: made =o
INDEPENDENT CONTRAGTCR and shall be recoverable by CARRIER under this provisica.
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR authorizes CARRIER to make pre-trip gett.ements in
compensation requested by INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR or 4its workers dizestly &2
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR's workers, provided, howaver, 2hat CARRIER has complete
discretion as o whether to isSue a pre-trip settlement and the amount of any pre-
trip sattlement. In no event shall CAPRISR make a pre-ctrip settlement o
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR of moxe than 30% of INCBPBNDENT CONTRACTOR's adjugted groass
revenue A9 set forth . Appendix A, CARAIER shall furnish INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR a
written explanstion and itemizat.on of all deductions and chargebacks made under
this provigien. All comcnek (or similax sersice) Pro-Trip Settlementa requestad by
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 3hall be subjact to & fee cf Three Dollars ($1.00) for each
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such settlement. Pre-Trip Settlsments pre-loaded onto INDEPENDENT CONTRICTOR'9 fuel

card shall be subject to a fes of Orne Dollar and Seventy-Pive Cents (§1.75) (or each

such settlement. CARRIBR will be deemed to have a lien against monies in 1ics

possession which azre xeceivables Zo the INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR to cover any monles

advanced or paird by CARRIER for Iitems which are INDERENDENT CNTRACTOR'a
. !

regponsibilicy. !
te) ogmf giggg and Deductione/Myltiple Contracts. [INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, at the time
of = ng this Agreemsnt or at any time thersafter, may authdrize CARRIBR o0 maka
additional deductions not aset forth ia this Agresensnt from settlements due

INCRPENCENT CONTRACTOR. In such case, a ccpy of tha signed authorization to make
such additional deduction, specifying the amounts, terms, and| conditions thereof,

s shall be acttached to and made a part of this Agreement. IER shall furnish
INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR with 3 written explanation and itemization of all deductions
nade from settlemencs due INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR under tHia Agreement. It

INCEPENCENT CONTRACTOR has ®mOXe thar one agreement with CARRIER, [NDEFENUENT
CONTRACTOR underatands and acknowledges thaf CARRIER may make deductions from trip
sctzlementy due, and escrow funds held for, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR for any monias
due CARRIER under the terms Of any agreement.

(d] In acddition to certals insurance coversges, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTIOR i@ requirad 3c
provide at its sole ccst all Bquipment, accessories or devices required for the
operation of the Rquipment. In the event INDEPENDZUT CONTRACTOR elects to puxchase,
laase or finance such Equipment, accessorles or devices from CARRIER or a e¢cmmenly
owvned company, the texms of Appendix £ of this Agreement shall apply.

5. ESCROW-  INUEPENDENT CONTRACTOR and CARRIER shall establish an escxow fund. Tha total
amount of such escrow fund shall be Five Bundred Dollars (950¢! per unit, which amount will Dbe
Qeducted fxrom INDEFBNDENT CONTRACTOR'S comperisaticn within a fifiteen (15} week pariod, Such escrow
fund shall ke raturned to INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR only upon terminastion of this Agresement and ths
balance dus shall be rafunded nct later than forty-five (43) days aftexr such termination, provided
the four (¢) foliowing listed ¢onditions are complied with by INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR:

(1} Return to CARRIER of all identification devices;

(2} Return ¢f base plate and permits as veguired herein;

{3) Rerturn of all signed delivery receipts for all shipments not previously forwaxded to
CARRIER; and

(4; Return of all other property of CTARRIER.

The escrow fund may at any time ba applied by CARRIBR to gatisfy any claims or debts owed by
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR purauant 9o the ctearms of this Agreement, inc.iuding but not limited to
advances made ¢ INDEFENCENT CONTRACTOR ox 4ts workers, csrgc claims, property damage oF txadler
damage claims, insursnce costs, and the cash value of permits not returned to CARRIBR., CARRIER
shall provide an Accounting to INDBPBNDENT CONTRACTCR of any trarsaction imvolving the escrow fund,
which accounting shall be shown on the settlemsnt sheet prcduced at tiez time the transaction 18
made. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR may at any time reguest aud receive an actounting for transactions
involving the escrow fund. CARRIER shall pay intareat on the escrow funds oh a quarterly basis,
which snall be established on the date the intersat pericd begins and shall ke equal to the average
vield of 91 day, 13 week tosasury bills, as established in the then most recent week.y auction by
the Department of Treamury. Por Canadian resident contractors only, the interzst 2h2ll be at a rats
equal to the average annual yield of 50 day treasury bills sold on the first date prior to such
paymer.t date on which the Canadian Fsdersl Minister of Finance accepts tender f£or the purpose of 93
d‘i' treasury bills. For purpcses of calculating the amount of the sscrow fund on which interest
wili be paid, CARRIBR will deduct 3 sum equal £S the averags advance made to IWDEPENDENT CORTRACTOR
during the period of time for which the intersst is duae.

6. ICENTIPICATION DEVICES: All identification devices af CARRITR required by any law or
regulation shall bte sscured it the name of CARRIZR and shall be displayed on the Bqu:ipment, at
INDEPENCENT CCNTRACTOR's sxpense, N accordance with all applicable regulations during the term of
thia Agresment., All ldentif:zaticn devices and documents are the soie property of CARRIER. Any
such identification shall be removed freom the Bquipment by INDRIENDENT CONTRACTOR and returned to
CARRIER Lty firat class mail addressed to CARRIBR'9 address ox in person irmediately upen termination
of this Agzeament. The parties agr2e that, in additlon to any cther right, remedy or claim CARRIBR
may have, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR shall pay CARRIER Twency-Five Dollara ($25.90) per day for
INUEPENTENT CONTRACTOR’S failurae =0 remove and/cx return all identification devices to TARRIER upon
termination of this Agreement.

7. OPERATIONAL EXPENSES: Except as otherwise provided in this Agzeement, INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR ahall furnish, provide and pay all operacioral expsnses inci:ding, but net limited to,
the items listed in this paragraph. In the event CARRIER is called upen to pay say of these
operar:onal expensss on behalf of INDZPENDENT CONTRACTOR, such pgayment saall ke considerec a Pxe-
Trip Settlament tc INDEPENDENT CORTRACTOFR (and a coat of operation) and CARRIER shall be sntitled <o
S&4x reimbursemeat fscm INDEPENDBNT CONTRACTOR or to charge back she paymert as aset forth (n
paragraph 4(b). Cperaticral expenses include, but are not limited to, the (ollawing:

(a} All fual, o1l, tirves and all equipment, accessorieg, or devices used in connection
3 CONTAACT Q1/10/98
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with the operation of the Equipment.

{b) All maintenance coats including all repaira;

(e All taxes and assessments, lhsgurance coats and other payments due by reason of the
payment by INTEPENCENT CONTRACTCOR of wagas or other earminge to its workaers;

(c) Base plates, including apportioned or prorated hase platas, fuel permits and all
other permits required to cperate the Zguipment (axcept overdimensicn/overweight
permits), empry miles, detantion, accessorial charges, licenses, and all “ax
payments with respect to the Equipment or on the use or operation therecf, including
all repcrts required o INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR connected therewith, and all ferry,

* bxidge and highway tolls;

{e) Fuel and Fuel Use Taxes, and Ton Mile/Mileage Taxes;

{£) Al fines and penalties resulting from acts or omissicns of INDEPBNTENT CONTRACTCR.
ineluding any monies paid by CARRIZR in the form of penalties to a government or
ragulatory body because of some act or onission on the part of INDEPERNDZNT
CONTRACTCR or its workers:

(g} All insurance costs relating to insurance coverage required by this Agreemen: or
otherwiss requested by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR from CARRIZER;

(h) Pederal Highway Use Tax on the Equipment; federal, provincial, state and city income
taxes; and, any self-employmen: ox payroll taxes;

L) All sales, use, excise and other taxas due ¥o owanership or operation sf Bquipmeut in

the jurisdiction imposing auch taxes, including fsderal goods and services tax and
all applicable provincial taxes;

(S} All other axpenses 1iacurred in the operation of the Equipment, including, buc pot
limiced 0, empry mileage, expesnses incurred to transfer any shipment and/or secure
additional equipmen: to complete delivery in case of breakdown or delay;

(k) In the event that the duration of this Agresmant i3 less than six (6) ncaths,
INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTOR shall be responsidble for the <osts related to all
pregqualification drug and alcohol testa reguired by applicable law.

8. LOADING AND UNLOADING: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the lcading and
unloading of all shipments transported under this Agreement at INDEPENDENT CONTRACIGR'S sxpense,

unless otherwise apecified in Paragraph ¢ or Appendix A of this Agreemert.

9 OVERANBIGHT /OVERDIMEBNSION SHIPMENTS: CARRIER shall provide all raguired
ovarweight/Qverdimengion permits Lo INPDEPENDEMT CONTRACTOR, provided, howavex, &that INCEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR shall have che duty to detarmine that its load is in compliance with the size and weight
laws of the jurisdictions in which it will cravel and ta potify CARRIER if the vehicle ls overweight
or in need of parmits befgre commwncing Lranspértation. Except when a viclatica results from zhe
acts r omissions of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, CARRIBR shall assume the riska and ceosts of fines £or
overwsight and oversize trallers when the trailers are preloaded. sealed or the load is
containerized, or when tne trailar ovr lading ia otherwise outsids INTEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'3 control,
or for {rproparly permitted overdimersion and overweight leads, and CARRIER shall re:mburse
INDEPRNDENT CONTRACTOR foxr any fires therefor paid by INCEPSNDENT CSONTRACTCR. INGEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR shall reimburse CARRIER for any <osts or penalties paid by CARRIER due Io INCEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR 's failure to comply with the terms of any perwit or INDEPENSENT CONTRACTOR's failure =o

pick up permits made available by TARRIER.

10, LICINSE PLATES: Unless INDEPENDENT TONTRACTOR already has obtained a valid base plate under
the International Registraticn Plan ("IRP”) or, for Canadian resident contractors, the Canadian
Agreement on Vehicle Registraticn (“CAVR¥), CARRIER shall cotain such plate in CARRIBR'S name for
use by INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR, in which case the amount apecified in Apcendix A per tractor per year
lor a pro rata based amount for a partial year plate} shall be deducted from INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTCR 's <¢ompengation within an eighteen (i@) week period begimning with the fifth weexly
settlement made pursuant to thiy Agreement. If CARRIBR receives a refund or crsdis for an 2P =r
CAVR plate reg:stered 1n the name of CARRIER, or {f such Dase plate Ls authorized by INDBPENDEMT
CONTRACTSR o be resold by CARRIBR 16 another contractor, CARRIER shall refund to INDBPENTENT
CONTRACTCR a pro rata share of the amount recesived by CARRIER less 2 transfer Zee of $§125.0C per
plate. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to reirbursement for an unused portion <f a
base plate, however, unless CARRIER is able tS reuse or resell the plate to another contractor.

1, PERMITS : ZER stall provide INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ~ith all necessary permits, and shall
charge INDBPENUENT CONTRACTOR tha amount specified {n Appendix A per :raciox per year , which cnarge
shal. be deducted frem INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR’S compensation within an aighte=en (18, week period
beginning with the (fifth weekly asettlement made pursuant to tiis Agreement. All permiza
certificates and licensas issued (7 CARRIER'S name shall Le returned to CARRIBR upon termination of
thiz Agreement. Nc rvefund shall be made to INDEPBNDENT CONTRACTOR by CARRIER of zhe permit costs
upon terminacion of this Agreement. INDEFPQVDENT CONTRACTOR shall ®e liakle to CARRIER Eor any
expunse cauaed to CARRIER py INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'S failuze Co return all pesmits requirsed by this
proviasion
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12. FUBL USE AND MILEACE TAXES: INDRPEBNTENT CONTRACTOR shall ke responaible for all WPuel Uge
and Mileage Taxes incurrad dus to the operxation of the Equipment under thia Agreement, provided,
however, that CARRZER shall prepare and filo all reports raquired uader the International Fuel Tax
Agxeement cr other applicable state or provincial law on behalf of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR pursuant

£0 the procedures set forth in Appendix € .

13. S3LECTION OF INDEPENUENT CONTRACTOR'S JUPPLIEZRS: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR {9 not reguired to
puzrchase or rent any producty, equipment or services from CARRIER as a conditisn of entering into

this Agreement.

4. INSURANCE: fhe responsibilities and cbligations between CARRIER and INCEPENTENT CONTRACTOR
invelving indurance shall te as gpecified in  Appendix 8. CARRIZR shall have no insurance
rasponsibllities ox obligations pertaining to INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOP or the Equipment other than

-nv

those exprassly stated in this Agreement or mandated by law.

~5. LJISS OR DAMAGE CLAIMS: INDEZPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall be responaible to CARRIER for any loss,
damage or delay clalm incurred during the term of this Agreement as follaws:
{a) 1nduw rd _Prope amage. Personal injury and/ox property damage riaims

e, Lln whole or in part, to INDEPENDBNT CONTRACTOR's or its workers! negligence, aa
detexrmined by CARRLER, will be charged %o INDIPENDENT CONTRACTOR up to One Thusand
Collars ($1,000.00) per claim, when such claims arige out of INDBPENDENT
CONTRACTCR's or- its workexs' operation of the Bquipment on a public highway or road.

Perscnal injury and/ox property damage claims due, in whole or in pax:, to
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'S Or its workers' negligence, as cetermined by CARRIER, will
be charged to INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR up to Twe Thousand Dollars (82,000.04: per
claim, when such claims ariee out cf INDEPINDENT CONTRACTOR'S Or £{ts workers’
operation of the Bguipment on private or governmental property other than a ;ublic
highway or road.

(B m}{ﬂ_ggmg If INDEPENDENT CONTRACTQR or its vorkers are permitted to usc a
trailer ich i3 the property of, interchanged to, or furnished by CARRIER ari the

trailar is damaged or destroyed, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTIOR shall be respensible Zc¢ the
damage or loss, picvided, howsver, that CARRIER agrees to limic INOBPLNDENT
CONTRACTOR's liabilily for damags € such txaillers furnished by CARRIER t~ One
Thousand Dollara (81,000,.00) per incident. This liability limitscion shal rot
apply, however, 1f the damage ls caused, in whole or in part, by any willf.l or
intentional act of INDEPENDENT TONTRACTCR cr ita workers, or if the driver of the
Equipment wag not qualified and/or approved by CARRIER a: the time of the ineid: nt

(q) Carge . INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any <¢lalm resu._ting
from cargo shortages, cargc damage, or delays in transporting shipments e, in
wiicle or in part, to the nagligence of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its worker:s, as
detexrmined by CARRIER, provided, however, that CARRIER agrees to limit INDEPENOENT
CONTRACTOR'S liapllity for any caxge ¢laim to One Thousand Dollars ($§1,000.00) cer
shipment. This liabilicy limitation shall not apply. however, if the damage is
caused, in whele or in part, by any willful or intentional act of INDEPRIUENT
CONTRACTZR or its workers, or if the driver of the Eguipment was not quallified
and/or apprsved by CARRIER &t the time of the incidenc.

(d) Clean-Up Expense INDBPENDENT CONTRACTCR shall be responsible for all costs of
cleaning up any accident or apill, including but not l:mitad to ciesel fuel spills,
{nvolving the Bquipment or the services provided by INDEPENUDBNT CONTRACTIR under
this Agreemenc, previded, however, Lthat CAPRIER agrees €5 limit INCEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR's liability for each such incident to Two Thousand Dollars ($3,€00.00),
This liability limication shall net apply, however, Lf the damage {s caused, in
whole or in part, by any willful or intenticonal act cof INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its
workers, or i! che driver of the Bquipment was "ot gualified and/or approved by
CARRIER at the time of the iacident.

(e} Miscellaneoys. INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR'E liability under subparagraphs (a), b}, (=
and (d) abova shall not exceed Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000 06] fer any single
incident, provided, however, chat this Llacility limitation shall not apply L£ the
incident i3 caused in whole or in part, as determined by ZARRIER, by any willful or
intenticnal act of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR cr 13 workers, or Lf the 3river of the
fquipment was not qualified and/otr approved by CARRIER at the time of the incident,

15, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RBLATIONSHI?: Thia Agrecment is intended by the parties to create
the relationship of CARAIER and INDEPSNDENT CONTRACTOR and not that of an empiover/employee nor
master/servant realacionship. Neithex INDBPENDBNT CONTRACTOR, its a«crkers, nor any individual
providing services of anv kind to INDEZPENUEINT CONTRACTCR, are to be considered employeep of GARRIER
4z any time, under any circumstances ox for any purpose. INDEPENOENT CONTRACTOR uncenditicnally
waives and releases CARRIZR, and any third-party employee benefit fund that provides benefits to any
¢f CRARIIR'Ss current or former employ=esa, from any claim 2oy benefita based on any past services
rendaxred ©0 CARRIER under this Agreemects. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall asgsume full and complete
responsibility for all workery utilized by it in the performance 37 all obligations under thig
Agreenent. In recognition o2f the independent contractor ralationahip which exists between cthe
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paczles, Lt iy acknowlaedged that INDEPENDEZNT CONTRACTOR na3 the right td detsrnina the macner and
means of performing all work hereundor. INDEPENDRNT CONTRACTOR has the right to decide what work te
perforn under this Agreement, piovided, however, that when work Ls accepred by INDSPENCENT
CONTRACTOR tha work will be pexformed in accordance with the tarms of this Agreement, khe
requirementa, 1£ any, of CARRIER'S customers, and all applicable laws and governmental regulations.
In nc evert shall any ccntracts or statementa of CARRIER be desmad, constriued or implied to
control, dirsct, or infringe on INDEFENDENT CONTRACTCR'S right to contral or actually controi the
marner and means of INUEPINDEYT CONTRACTCR'S performancs of the services contsmplated {n shis
Agreement. INCTPENCENT CONTRACTOR furthexr agraes to defend, indemnify and hold ZSARRIER harm.ess
frem any claims, demands, suits, or actiens brought by any workers, any union, the puolic, or gtate,
previncial or federal agencies, srising out of the cperation of the Equipment or the provision of
driver serxvices pursuant to this Agreement.
-

17. PASSENGERS: No passenger shall be permitted to travel in the Equipment without prior writtan
authorization frcm CARRIBR. Any passenger suthorized by CARRIER must te & minimum of 18 years of
age, and must sign a walver of liability a3 provided in the Passenger Authorization Foxm 32 e
pravided by CARRIER. In no event zhall more than one auchorized passenger be peormitted at any one
time. .

18, REFLECTIVE TAPR MARKINGS: In order o ensure safe operations on the highways, INDBPENDENT
CONTRACTCR agress that all trailing equipment provided t9 CARRIEZR by INUCEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ahall ke
greytrly marked with reflective tape as specified by CARRIER or as may be raquized by appiicapdle
aw .

19. SUBCONTRACTING/TRIP-LEASING: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR may trip-lease or subcontract the
Bquipment to a third party other than a subsidiary of CARRIER only upon receiving pricr written
authorization from CARRIER. Ths following procedures shall apply to any trip-lease or subcontract
situation:

In order to request authorization fxom CARRIER for any trip-lease, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
shall:
1) Obtain valid carrier information ({name, address, identificaiion nurber,
phone number, contact person of sarrier);

2) Call CARRIER’S rain office and provide CARRIER with :1nformation about the
carrier and apout the load;

3) Receive and record release number, if trip lease is approved. 1In the evint
that a trip-lease i3 not approved, a rslease riumber will not be given und
INDBPENDENT CONTRACTCR may nob enterx into a trip-lesss agreement; and

4) Any paymerts in advance offsred to INCEPENDENT CONTRACTGR hy any oth:or
carrier must be refused.

Upon delivery of any trip-lease load, INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall-

1) Obtain a2 3igned proof of delivery:
2) Indicate release number on each piece cf paperwor<; and
3) Mail all paperwork, including a copy of the signed-off trip-lesse agreevent,

placards, snipping ordexr or bill of lading, del:very recelpt and lcgs to the
designated representative of CARRIER.

CARRIER assumes no respensibility for the collection of freight charges or payment to
INUEPENTENT CONTRACTOR of any trip-lease related revenue unless this provision is complied
with by INUBPBNDENT CONTRACTOR. During the term of any trip-lease, INDSPENDENT CONTRACTCR
shall remove or covsr up all of CARRIER's f{dentificaticn on zhe Bquipment, and CARRIER shall
have no responsibilicy for, and INDBPBNDENT CONTRACTCR shall fully indemnify CARRIER
regarding, the operation of the 2Bquipment in respec: %o the publie, shippers, and
governmental regulations during the texm of such trip-lease.

20, UNAUTKORIZED USE OPF BQUIPMENT: If, during cthe texm cf this Agreement, INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR ox its workars operats any Zquipment in any manner varying from tha regulations or beycnd
the scope of the operating authority of CARRIER, or uses the Equipment Isxr ites own purposes, or 25x
banelit of a third party cther than CARRIBR {except as allowed in Paragraph 19) or for any other
purpose not permitced by this Agreemen:, then this Agreement shall, at ZRRRIER's option, be deemed
terminated as of the time that su¢h unauchorized use occurred, and all cbligatizns and liazilities
>f CARRIZR urdar this Agreement shall be Seemed tc have csased and corminaced as of the time of such
Jracthorizacd use, except 20r sny and all provisions regarding the indemlfication of CARRIER by
INDEPENDRENT CONTRACTOR which provisions shall survive the terminacion of this Agxeement Nothing in
this Agreement shall pxohibit INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR from rancering services as a driver to any
thivd party. [f INDEPENDENT CONTPACTOR renders yervices 28 a driver to anothsr company, INCEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR shall inciude suchk zims on all driver logs submitted o CARRIBR as required by federal,
provincial or sgtate law. Failure to ccmply wich these requirements may resu.t in the -mediace
termination of this Agreement by CARRIER. .

21, TRAILER UTILXZATION PROGRAM: INDEPENDBNT CONTRACTON may utiliZe CARRIER's trailers under
6 CONTRACT 01/96,38
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the Trailer Utillzation program described in Appendix 2.

22 DUZ DILIGENCE ANC CSOPBRATION WITH CAARIBR ON CLAINMS:
(a) Ca Claims, INDEPBNTENT CONTRACTOR warzants that all cargo Zcaded on tha
Equipnent sFilau be deliverad to the consignee with reasonable diligence, speed and

care and as may be requixed ty the shipper or oa the bill of lading. INDRPENDENT
CONTRACTOR or its cdriver shall Lmmediately report any cargo sxceptions or damages to

CARRIER .

(k) Accidents. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its driver shall notify CARRIER immediaZely of
any property damage and any incident or accident invelving any pedestrian or

> accupant of any type of vehicle, whaether or not tha incicdent or accident appears to

have vesulted in perscnal injury and whether or not INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR appears

to be at fault.

{c) Roadside Ingpectiocs  INDBPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its driver shall notlfy CARRIER in
2 tinely fashion of any roadside inspestion of the Equipment and the results
thereof, and INDBPENDENT CONTARACTOR shall provide CARRIER with 2 copy of the
roadside inspection repoxt received in connection with sach such inapection.

(a) Noticse 95 infxassions, g;g;%_g gli $uicy. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall forward
immediately to CARRIER every demand, notice, suymmons, ticket Or other legal process
veceived by INDEFENDENT CONTRACTCR that {nvolves a charge, infraation, <laim, suit
or other legal proceeding ariaing from the operation of the ZIZquipmenz, the

relationship craated by this Agreement or the ssrvices performed hareunder.

te) Jodepscdent Contractor's Ass;stance ynd Cooperation. INDEPBHDENT CONTRACTOR and its
dxiver shall cooperate fully with CARRIBR in the conduct of any legal action,
reguiatory hearing or other amimilar process arlsing Irom the operation of the
Bquipnent, the telationship created by this Agreement c¢r Lthe services performed
herwmunder. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall, upon CARRIBR'Ss raquest, provide written
reports or affidavits, attend hearings and trials and assist in securing evidence or
obtaining the attsndance of witnesses. INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTOR shall provide CARRIER
with any assistance as may be necessary fOor CARRIER or TARRIZR's rspIesentatives or
insurexrs to invastigate, settle or litigate any accident, claim or posential z2.aim
by or against CARRIBR.

PR C.Q0.0. SKHIPMENTS: In handling C.0.P, or order/notify shipments, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or
its workers shall perform as indicated on the shipping crder, call the originating terminal =0
report the C.0.0. or order/aotify shipment; acecept only a cartified check, cashier’'s check or United
States or Canadian Postal money crdar mads payable to CARRIZR Zor the ahipment; and, remit to
CARRIZR no later than the next business day aftar the delivery date the full amounc specified on the
frzight bill, including tranasportation and C.0.D. charges. 1In the event that INDEPENTENT CONTRACTCR
accepts any othar method of payment, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall bear the risk ¢f loss. In the
event of non-dalivery of such a shipment, INDEPENDENT CONTRACIOR ox its workera shal. advise CARRIER
of such non-delivery no later than the next busiress day following the day of attemptad delivery or

collection.

4. EQUAL TMPLOYMBNT QPPORTUNITY- The services and Equipment epecified herein will be furnished
by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR in full compliance with all applicable fedsral, provancial, atate and
local laws and regulatisns pertaining to governmenc centracts and subcontractd, including, witheut

limication, Executive Oxder 11246.

2% GOVERNING LAW AND ARBITRATION: This Agreement is to bs governed by the lawa of the State of
Illincis. Any dispute arising ouz of or relating to this Agreement, including any allegation of
breach therecf, shall be fully and finally resolved by arxbitration in accordance with Iilinols’
arbitration act, and the arbitration shall te conductsd in acccrdance with the Commercial
Axbitration Rules of the American Azrbitraticn Association ("AAA”"). A Demand for Arbitration shall
be filed with the AMA's sffice located in or closest to Rockford, Illinols, and shall ba filed nst
lacer than eone year after ths disputs arises or the claim accrues. Pallure to file the Demand
within the one year period shall be deemed a full waives of the claim The place of the arbitraticn
hearing shall be Rockford. Illincia. Both parties agree to be fully and finally bound bty the
arbitrzation award, and, wrare 3llcwad by law, judgment ray be entered on the award {n eny cours
kaving jurisdicrion therecf. All dollar amounts specified in this Agreement are bagsed on U.S.

Dollars.

i6. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement ccntains the entire agreement between CARRIER and
INDEPENDBNT CCNTRACTOR and supersedes, cancels and revokes all other contracts between the parties
xelating to the Equipment and any other contxact which is alleged to cover any zexvices rendered by
INDEPENDRENT CONTRACTOR to CARRIER, or to which INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR i3 alleged to be a thixd-party
beneficiary as a result of any dervices renderad to CARRIER, provided, however, thaz the parties may
amend or modify this Agreement in writing signed by both parties or, with respect tc modification of
any chargeback item, as allowed tor in Appandix A ¢f this Agreemenc.

27, SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS: If any sections, part or parts of sections ¢ this Agreement are
deemed 1nvalid for any reason whatsoever, che provisions of this Agreemerc shall be void only as to
such section, sections or paxt, or parts ¢f aections, and this Agreement shall remain otherwise
binding batween the pasties herstc. Any secticn, ox part er paxts of sections volded by operation
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of the foregoing shall be replaced with provisicnas which shall ke as close ag the partlesa’ oriqinal
inzent as permitted under applicable law,

23. NON-NAIVER: The failure or refusal of eizher party to insist upon the strict performance of
any provision of this Agresment, or to exerciss asny rxight in any one or mora instances ox
circumstances shall not be construed as a waiver oz ralinquishment of such provision or righs, nor
shall such failure or refusal be deemed a custom or practice 2ontrary Lo such provision or right,

29, NCTICES: Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall de deemed conclusively to
have been given when deposited in the United Szates or Carada Mail properly addressed with first
class postage prapaid. The address of esch party shall be that set forth on the Attached Statement,
and the address to which natices ave to be sent may be changed by providing the other party notice
of change of *address. Wheve INDEPENPENT CONTRACTOR provides notice of change of its address, the
change of addzsas will be effective upon CARRIER's sending acknowledgment of the notice.

30 TERMINATION: The INCEPENDENT CONTRACTCR will, at the time this Agreement is termirated,
remove all CARRYER idertification from the Equipment and return all of CARRLER’'S property iand
freight to CARRIER's nearest terminal, including trailers, chains, binders, and tarps ard placa:ds.
Plates and permits nust be returned to the Permit Departmenc in Rockford, Illinois. I INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR fails t9 return CARRIER'S property or £reight tc CAPRIFR or remova all CERRIER
1dencification from the aquiprent €0 CARRIER withia fifceen {15) days after termination of this
Contract, INDBPENDENT CONIRACTOR will pay CARRIER an initial payment of damage in Lthe amount of
$1,000.00, as a pre-estimate of damages and not as a penalty, and CARRIER may pursue all other
remedies mllowed by law or authorized in the Agreement against INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR. Is
INDEPRNDENT CONTRACTOR fails to perferm Ats osbligaticns under this Agresment, CARRIER may, in
addition to any other remedy provided by law or under this Agreement, complete INDEPHNDENT
CONTRACTCR's obligations and arge INDEFENDENT CONTRACTOR for any expenses assscclated with
complsting INCEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'S otligations.

les parties ont specifiquement requis que la presente convention de mewe que tous leas documents g'v
rattachant soitent redigees wn langue anglals seulsmenc.

The partlies have apecifically requasted that this Aersimcnt and all documents hereto be drafted in
ths Bnglish language only.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CARRIER and INDEPENDEN{;EQNTRACTOR do

herehy sign this Agreement on this day of .47 ,
199 , the effective date of this Agreement

1a we. Gt N Bsor e

CARRIER INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
Signature Signature

IRS W-9 Certification: Under penalties of perjury, I certify that the number
shown on this form is my correct tax payer identification number and I am not
subject to backup withholdings ag¢egeding to the Internal Revenue Service [IRS).

—tE=rorETd— Gl sl

(DBA - Name that matches SS# or FID# uged below!

CB-0048 ) 4

(Social Security Number or Federal I.D. Number)
{This number will be uged on Federal Fcrm 1033)

Corporation Individual Partnership
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PE X A

Compensation
(a) Contractor's Share of Revenue: Unless otherwise agreed to in
INDEPENDENT

Wwriting Cretween the parties, CARRIER shall pay
CONTRACTOR based on the following:

(1) Por haulage of loads tendered by CARRIER:

‘>
Power Unit/Tractor 67% of 98%
cf Adjusted Gross
Reveriue {™AGR")

Power Unit with CARRIBR'S

Platform Trailer on Fixed
Rental 75% of 98%¢ (AGR)

Power Unit while pulling
CARRIER'g Refrigerated
Trailers 68%¥ of 98% (AGR)

Regular Trailer (van,
£lat, extendible flat,
stepdeck) 8% of 98% {AGR)

Specialized Trailer
{double drcp, tri-axle,
insulated van w/heater) 3% of 98% {AGR.

Refrigerated Trailer 10% of 98% (ASR)

Heavy Haul Trailerx

{7 or more axles in
combination) 10% of 98% (AGR)

(2} Adjusted Gross Revenue shall mearn revenue to CARRIER shown on
freight bills, or amended bills, to the shirpers, consignees,
or other carriers for commodities hiuled iy INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR, reduced by: (a) any and all expenses attributed
to accesgscrial gervices raid to a third party eor to
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR by CARRIER; (b) the amount paid tc any
third party by CARRIER in relation to movement of the lcag,
including without limitation: amounts paid to other
contractors as a pro rata payment for their partic¢ipation in
the movement of a load; any amount paid by CARRIER to
interline or augmenting cazrriers; and, any warehouse or
svorage charces; (¢) any revenue received by CARRIER as an
excess vaiue charge on high value fraight charge; (<& all
incentives, discounts <r commissions given <o CARRIER'e
customers or other third partiss; and f{e] ameunts paid or
acerued for certain epecralized trailsrs and exceasive
trailer spotting situations.

{k) Acgessorial Services charqes: The percentages of Accesggorial
Charges listed belcw shall ke paid to INDEPENDENT CONTRAZTOR,
provided that sucil Accesscrial Services Charges are covered sy a
written contract or tariff and are billed to and collected from a
shipper or customer by CARRIER:

Detention - 100%
Tarping - 100%
Loading - 100%
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Unlecading - 100%
Sort & Segregaze - lQc%
New York City . - 100%
Motsr Surveillaace (A & E) - 100¥%
Satallite Tracking - 85%
Government Security (A & E) - 85%
Ccnetant Surveillance (A &« E) - B8S5%
Protective Services (A & E) -  85%

All other accessorial charges, includ:ing but not limited to. team
operation, job site delivery, alr ride, dual driver, temperature
ceontrol and stop-off pay shall be paid to INCEPENDENT CONTRACTCR
based on its percentage cf Adjusted Gross Revenue specified above,
providad tha:t s3uch other acceesorial charges are covered rv a
written contract or tariff and are billed to and collected from a
shipper or customer by CARRIER.

(c) Chargeback Expanses: Pursuant %o Faragraphs 10 and 11 of this

Agreement, the amounts to ba charged back to INDEPENDENT CCONTRAZTOR
by CARRIER for license plates and permits provided by CARRIER shall
be based on the following annual Zees:

IRP Base Place - . 81,500 per tractor
Permits - $ 325 per tractor

{d) Electronie Weekly Settlements {(Landstar Card): CARRIER shall
provide INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR with a debit card (Landstar Card).
Unless INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR requests otherwise, settlement cf

the INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'® processed trips shall be depcsited
electxonically each week by CARRIBR cn the landstaxr Card and will

be subject to an administrative fee c¢f ore doliar and seventy-five

cents {$1.75) per deposit,.

All chargeback items and fa2es to be decducted from INDEPENDENT CONTRASTOR'S
Share of Revenue herein ars subject to adjustment, by CARRIER. No less than
thirty {30) days prior to any adjustment INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR will be
notified in writing by CARRIER of the adjustment, the amount of adjustment and
the date the adiustment i3 proposed to take effect., Tf INDEPEWNDENT CONTRACTOR
does nct agree to the change, iz shall notify CARRIER cn or tefore the proposed
effective date of adjustment. Acceptance of any lcad by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR
after the proposed effective date of the adjustment will indicaze undsrstanding
and acceptance by INTEPENDENT CONTRACTOR of the new fee or chargeback amount
and the parties will use their best efforts tsc promptly execute a written
adderdum reflacting the adiusted fee or rate.
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APPENDIX B

Ingurance

IX shall te CARRIBR'S responsibility, pursuant to federal, provincial and/or stac= law, to provide
no l2as than the minimum legisiated public liability and property damage insurance foxr the Equipment
a% all times while zhe Equipment is being operated on behalf of CARRIZR. The partiss agree and
underatand that CARRIER's qualification as a self-insurer with the Fedexal Highway Adminiastration
satisfies {ts insurance obligacions under federal iaw, CARRIER's possessicn of the rejuired
iagurance shall in ne way affect CARRIER's right of indemnification against INODEPENUENT CONTRACTCR

as prcvided for ia this Agreenent.

INCEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shail maintain, at its ascle ccs: and expense, the following minimuim insurance
scverages during the term of this Agreement:

1.,

(3]

w

3 jabili " il”) . INDEPENDENT CCONTRACTOR shall procure, carry and
maintain public liakdlicy and propsrty damage insurance whiclh shall provide primary
coverage to INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR wherevar the EIquipment is not transporting
freight on behalf of CARRIER, which covexsge shall be in a combined singls limet of
not lsss than One Million Oollars ($1.000,000.02) for any one occurrsnce (the "Ncn-
Trucking Use - Broad rorm Unladen Policy). The NoreTrucking Use - Broad PForm
Unladen Policy shall name CARRIER and fts affiliaces as additional insureds, and
shall provide (1) for first 4dollar coverags with no deductiblas, (3) for waiver of
the \nsurer's subrogation rights against sach additional insured, (3) shall apply
whenever the Bquipmant is either “bobtailing” or -"desdheading”, and (4) shall be
primary with respect to all insureds. Por purposes 9f such insuxance, “bobtailing*
means the Equipment ia baing operated without a trailer attached and “deadheading”
means tne Bquipment is being operated with an aztached trailer which does not
eontaln or carry any cargo INDBEPINDENT CONTRACTOR axpressly acknovwledges tiat it
shall be sclely responsible for any loss in excesa of policy limits and shall
1ndemnify and hold CAPRIER harmlass agajnst any ioas in 2xceas of INDEPENTENT
CONTRACTOR’S policy limies., Such policy of iasurance coverage shall provide for
thixty (30) days prior notice to CARRIER of cancellation or material change Iz the
event that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR fails to provide CARRIER with proof of insurance
coverage required uader this provision, INTEPEINCENT CONTRACTOR authorizes CARRIER tcC
daduct from INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR‘s ccapersaticn an amocunt of Sixteen Dollars and
Vinsty-Nine Cents ($16.99) per unit per week fcr the Non-Trucking Use - Broad Form
Unladen Policy requirad by this provision. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR may, in
aceordance with policy terms, cancs. the certificats of insurance for Nom-Truckiac
Use -~ Broad Form Unladen Policy provided by CARRIER az any time as INDEFENDENT
CONTRACTOR elects by wrliten notice to CARRIBR or the appropriate insurance agsac,
provided, howsver, that such cancellation dces not affect INDEPENDENT CANTRACTOR'a
obligationg and undartakings under this Agriemenc. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
understands that Non-Trucking Use - Broad Form Unladen Policy providad by CARRIER
does not apply to injury or damage to INDEFRIDENT CONTRACTOR, or its workers, nor cc
20llision or comprehendive coverage to the Bquipment, and it is furthar undexstood
that if INDBPENTENT CONTRACTCR desires to havs such coverags, it shail have =he ducy
o obrain and pay for ik.

Tractor Damags. It is INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to procurs, carry and
maintain eny fire, thef: or ecollision insurance that IWDERPENCENT CONTRACTOR nmay
degire for the fquipment. CARRIER shall not be liaple for any .loces of ¢r any camags
to the Bguipment, and INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR expressly waives ail claims Lt nay have
in the future against CARRIBR Zor such losa or damage to the Bquipment. INDEPENDANT
CONTRACTOR may, 4t 1ts sole digeretion, alect tc purchase collision insurance
through CARRIER, in which case CTARRIBR wi.l () furnigh INUEPENDENT CONTRACTOR a
copy of the policy upon reguest, and (2) provide a cartiflicate of Lnaurance =c
INCE7ENDENT CONTRACIOR, which shall show the nare of the inaurer. the policy number,
the effective dates of coverage, the smounts and types of coverage. the deductible
or retained liability amoun:s for which INCEPENDENT CONTRASTOR may be liabla, and
the coat to INDEPINDERNT JCNTRACTOR for sucn requestes covarajze.

kerp' om at i nal Acciden: Coverage FPrior to commencing
operations under this Agreement, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOP. shall provide a certificate
of insurance, accedtable to CARRIIR, showiag that INCEPENCENT CONTRACTOR has
procured workez's compensation insurance in an awmount net less =han the sctatuleory
iimits requirad in INDSPENDEINT CONTRACTOR's state of rasidence, including emplcyer’s
liabilizy insurance in an smount not less than PFive Hundzed Thousand Dollara
($500,000.59;. INDEPENTENT CONTRACTOR shall provide CARRIER wirth a cerzificate cf
Linsurance, acQeptanle to CARRIER, ghowing that wrio<ten notice of cancellaticn <x
nodiZication of tha policy shall be given %c CARAZER 3t least thairey {30} days priar
to such canesllation or modification. Netwichazandiag anything to the concrary in
zhis Agreement, if INDEPBNDENT CONTRACTOR has nc drivers other than hlmself cor
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR onliy uses Ixivers wio own che:rr aguipment, then, ir lisd cf
the required worker § compensation coverage, INVEPENZENT CONTRACTOR can paxsicipate
11 the “Coniractor Proteccion Plan’ approved by QARRIBR and offerad cthrouch
CARRIER @4 insursr, <r any cccupatienal accident plan acqeptable zo CARRIER that

1 SONTIACT 04/16/98
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provides, at a minimum, the fcllowing:

(a) Ccverage tor aubstantially all claims which are cons:dered
compensable under applicable state or provincial wozkecs®
compensation laws even though the claiman: under the coverage may be
an irdependent contractar and may not typically be entitlad o
worker's compensation benefits; .

8-} Coverage of 3$500,000.00 aggregate peI occupational accident;

{¢) A minimum of $400.00 per week occupational accident disar:laty
. banefits with a saximum seven day walting pericd:

{d) A minimum ¢f §50,000.€0 lump aum accldental death benefits;

{a) A minimum 24 month temporary tezal disarility benefic;

{€) Pirst dollar occupational medical coverage with no deductible :ind a

minlmum of .94 weeks of medical coverage;

i9) Indernification of CARRIER f£rom all poliSy benefits the claiman may
have received from an oecupational accident covered under 3uch
coverage but did aot receive becsuse claiman® pursued woxkag's
compensation benefits instead of henefita avallasle under the
occupational accident coverage; and

(h} Cextification showirg that written notice of cancellation or
nodification of the plan shall de given to CARRIER at lwast thi-ty
130} days prior to such canceilation or modification.

1¢ INDEPENUENT ZONTRACTOR fails o acquire and maintain the worksr's comgensat.on
insurancs Or acceptadble alternatives required herein, thern CARRIER shall havs the
right, but nof the obligation, to include INDEPENCENT CONTRASTOR's participasion in
the Contractsr Protacz:on Plan and shall he entitled to deduct and charge ba-k
IMDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR the amount of $26.3C per unit per wesk £or CARRISR's expenve
in obtaining such coverage on INDEPENTENT CONTRACTCR's behalf. CARRIZR's Contractc -
Protecticn Plan is NOT statutory worker's compensation and employer's lilab:lit -
coverage, and evan when INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCPR. is grovided coverage under the texms
of CARRIZR's Contxactor Protection Plan, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall szill he
responsible for any worker's compensaticn and employer's liability d4nsurancze
coverage that may ge required by applicabie law.

In the avent that INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTOR obtaira insurance coverage through TARPIZR pursuant t< thas
provizion, CARRLIR or the rnsurance underwriter shall provide INDEPBNDENT CONTRACSTCR with a
cextificace of insurance Ior each insurance policy under whish the INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR is
provided coverage. Such cart:ficate shall state the nama cf the insuver, the peolicy number, the
effective dates of che policy, the amounts and types of coverage, tie $osc to INDEPENDENT CONTRACTIOR
Lor sach type of coverags., and the deductible or retained liability amcunts for which INCEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR may be liable. A copy of the actual policy is availatle fox xeview by INDEPINDENT
CONTRACTOR at CARRIER's principal place af busines3. INCEPEMDENT CONTRACTOR recognizes and agrees
that CARRIEBR 13 nct in the business of aelling or soliciting inaurance, asnd any lnsurance coversgs
requested Ly INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or provided tarough CARRIER L8 subject to all of the terms,
condicicns and exclusions of the actual policy issued by the insurance underwriterx. In the event
that the inaurance costs shall changs or vary, ag determined by the ingurxer, CARRIER shall acvise
INDEPBNUENT CONTRACTCR of such change in insurance ¢ost Ln writing and INDEPBUDZNT CTONTRAITUR'S
fatlure to objec: or terminate the coverage being provided through CARRIBR Ln writing to CARRIER
shall coustitule an expreas consent and authorizatisn £ CARRIER to deduet and charje back to
INUEPENTENT CONTRACTOR the revised amount.
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APPENDIX C
Equipment Purchase Program

1, Tractor C uter Pureg - As evidenced b? execution of this
Acreement, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR has elected to finance through
CARRIER or an affiliated company the purchase or lease of certain

tractor computer eguipment. The parties acknowledge that the
termg of ‘that financing agreemen:t are set forth in a separate note
and security agreement {(“*Contract”). Pursuant to the terms of the

Contract, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR hereby authorizes CARRIER (o
cecduct from any settlements or any other sums owed by CARRIER to
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR the costs associated with that financing,
including, application fees, down payments, the principal amount,
interest, and any other £ees, expenses or charges £for which
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is obligated pursuant to the terms of the

Cortracet.

13 CONTAACT $1/18/98
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APPENDIX D
Trailer Utilizati

{a} Trajler Utilization Fze: CARRIER will decduct frocm INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR'S settlement the fcllowing amount for each week a
trailer provided by CARRIER is used by or in the posgession of
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its workers:

* Type of Trailer Weexly User Fee
Flatbed $155.00/per weex
Step Deck 5170.00/per weex
Extendible 5185 /par weex
Double Drop 5260/per weex
(k) Trailer Maintenange: CARRIER shall be responsible for all

maintenance, including tires and repairs, needad to insure safe and
efficient operation of any trailer previded f£or use oy CARRIER. As
a condition of using CARRIER's traller, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR
agrees to foliow CARRIER'S Trailer Pclicies and Procedures,
including Preventative Maintenance Schadules, copies of which are

available from CARRIER upon reguest.

(e) Use of Trailer: It is further agreed by the parties that in the
event INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its workers shall <change or
substitute any parts or accesscries of CARRIER's trailer
including, but not lLimitad to, the tires of said equipmentc, without
written pearmissicn from CARRIER, then INDEPENDENT CONTRACTCR shall
pay CARRIER a sum not tc exceed the actual cash value, as
calculated Ly CARRIER, for each auch wunauthor:izad change or
sukstitution.  INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTCR agrees to return CARRIER'S
trailer in the same good condition as recelved by INDEPENTENT
CONTRACTOR, reascnable wear and tear excepted, along wita any and
all other equipment or property belonging to CARRIBR imrediakely
upon CARRIER's request or upen termination of this Agreemen: at a
time and place designated throsugh CARRIER. In the event the
trailer ie not in as good a condition as it was when delivered by
CARRIER, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR hereby authorizes CARRIER to
restoxre the trailer to proper conditicn and tc deduct or charge
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR for such repairs or reconditioning. 1In the
event INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR for any reason fails to comply with
this provision, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR agrees to reimburse CARRIER
for all reascnable expense and co3t incurrzed by CARRIER in recovery
of ita trailer and/or property from INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR or its
workers. INDEZPENDENT CONTRACTOR agrees that in the event it is
necedsary for CARRIER to enter upcn private prorerty and/or remove
private property in order to recover its trailer and/or property,
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR dces heredy irrevccably grant CARRIER or its
duly authorizsd agents, permissicn to 4¢ 8o and further agrees to
gave and hold harmless CARRIER, or itas duly authorized agents, £rom
any fecrm of liatility for any claim or damage whatscever in
connection with such repossessior.
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APPENDI
Fuel and Mileage Taxes

CAPRIER shall prepaxe and file all reporte required under the
Internaticnal Fusl Tax Agreement (*IFTA”) or other applicakli’a state or
provinciai law with respect to the fuel and mileage taxes incurred by the
Equipment during the term of this Agreament, pursuant to the following
procedurag:

>
1. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the payment of all
fuel and milieage taxes payable for the Eguipment during the term of

this Agreement.

2. INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTOR agrees to ftimely submit all documents,
including but not limited to original and legible fuel receipts,
temporary permits showing fuel and/or mileage taxes paid, and toll
tickets, required by CARRIBR in order to prepare the necessary tax
filings. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall ke responsible for any
additicnal tax, expense, peralty or intarest incurred as a result
of INDEPENCENT CONTRACTOR's failure to submit such required

documents.

3 CARRIER shall calculate on a monthly basis the fuel owed for the
Equipment in each applicable state and province. Any such tax that
is owed after caleulating the creditc given %£o INDEPENDENT
CONTRACTOR for purchases made at the pump snall be charged back to
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR on a monthly basis as a pre-trip settlement.
Additional {nformation regarding the prccedures utilized by
CARRIER in calculating fuel taxes is available from CARRIER upan
rveguest. Tax credits available due to the over-purchase of #uel by
INDEPENDENT CONTRAZTOR 9hall, as alliowed by state and provincial
law, be carried over and applied by CARRIER to the next month's tax
liabiliry. VUpon termination of the Agresement, CARRIER 8hall pay
INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTOR, as part of its final settlement, any fuel
tax refund that INDEPENDENT CCNTRACTCR may be entivled to,
provided, however, that any guch refund will firstc ke applied ts
any expense cwed to CARRIER by INDEPENUENT CONTRACTOR under this

Agreement.

4. Mileage taxes are computed on a per lcad basgls for miles traveled
in those states that assesg a mileage tax. CARRIER shall charge
back all owed mileage taxes to INDERPENCENT CONTRACTOR on a per load
basis aa a pre-trip sectlement.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR agrees to cocperats fully with CARRIER, and
te provide CARRIER with any additional dccumentation requested by
CARRIER, ir connection with any fuel or mileage tax audit. In the
event that additional taxes are asgesged to the Bquipment afser any
such audit, then INCEPENDENT CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such
addicional taxes; provided, however, that INZEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
shall not be respcnsibie for the payment of any penalties or
inters=st due to any error made 2y CARRIER in preparing the varicus
tax reports,

wn
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